
 
 

 
 
 
 
DYDD LLUN, 24 HYDREF 2022 
 
 
AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R CABINET 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD  
AML-LEOLIAD O’R CABINET A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR,   
NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN, SA31 1JP NEU O BELL AM 10.00 YB, 
DYDD LLUN, 31 HYDREF, 2022 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A 
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM. 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224030 
E-Bost: JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 
Cyfarfod aml-leoliad yw hwn.  Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol 
yn y lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar 
wahân. 
Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:- 
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

 
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
 

   Y CABINET  
AELODAETH – 10 AELOD 

 
Cynghorydd Portffolio 

Cynghorydd Darren Price Arweinydd 

Cynghorydd Linda Evans Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Gartrefi  

Cynghorydd Glynog Davie Addysg a'r Gymraeg  

Cynghorydd Ann Davies Materion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio 

Cynghorydd Philip Hughes Trefniadaeth a'r Gweithlu  

Cynghorydd Gareth John Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 

Cynghorydd Alun Lenny Adnoddau 

Cynghorydd Edward Thomas Gasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith 

Cynghorydd Jane Tremlett Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

 



 
 

 
  

 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL   
 
3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y 

CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 17 HYDREF 2022  
5 - 8 

 
4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU  

(NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 
 

 
5. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 

(NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW)  
 

 
6. GOBLYGIADAU DEDDF RHENTU CARTREFI (CYMRU) 2016  9 - 22 
 
7. DIWEDDARIAD AR GRONFA FFYNIANT GYFFREDIN Y DU  23 - 36 
 
8. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 

AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN 
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

CABINET 
 

DYDD LLUN, 17 HYDREF 2022  
 

PRESENNOL Cynghorydd D. Price (Cadeirydd) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
C.A. Davies L.D. Evans G. Davies P.M. Hughes 
A. Lenny E.G. Thomas J. Tremlett A. Vaughan Owen 
    
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
W. Walters, Prif Weithredwr; 
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol; 
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau; 
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Addysg a Phlant; 
R. Griffiths, Pennaeth Lle a Chynaliadwyedd; 
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith; 
A. Williams, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff; 
C. Higginson, Media Manager; 
S. Rees, Cyfieithydd Ar Y Pryd; 
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Cymorth y Cabinet; 
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd; 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn rhithwir): 
A. Williams, Pennaeth Y Gwasanaethau Integredig; 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Siambr, Neuadd Y Sir, Caerfyrddin ac o bell: 10.00 yb - 10.35 yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

Cafwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd G. H. John.   
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol.   
 

3. COFNODION - 3YDD HYDREF 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi bod cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet 
a gynhaliwyd ar 3 Hydref, 2022 yn gofnod cywir. 
  
[SYLWER: O ran cofnod 4 - 'Cwestiynau â Rhybudd gan yr Aelodau' - eglurodd y 
Cynghorydd Ann Davies, Aelod Cabinet dros Faterion Gwledig a Pholisi 
Cynllunio, y byddai'r cofnodion yn ymwneud ag adroddiad terfynol y Panel 
Gorchwyl a Gorffen - Pobl Dduon, Asiaidd a Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig yn cael eu 
cyflwyno i'r Cyngor yn hytrach na'r adroddiad ei hun. Ychwanegodd fod y 
Cynghorydd Tina Higgins wedi cael gwybod am y mater.   
 

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu 
cyflwyno gan yr Aelodau. 
  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



 

 
5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
 

6. CYNLLUN CARBON SERO NET - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDDA 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn manylu ar gynnydd yr awdurdod 
tuag at ddod yn awdurdod lleol Carbon Sero Net erbyn 2030 yn unol â Cham 
Gweithredu NZC-28 o'r Cynllun Gweithredu Sero Net a gymeradwywyd gan y 
Cyngor ar 12 Chwefror 2020 [gweler cofnod 8.1] a oedd yn gofyn am 
adroddiadau perfformiad blynyddol. Nodwyd bod yr ail Adroddiad Cynnydd hwn 
yn ddogfen gymharol fanwl gan y byddai Cynllun Carbon Sero Net diwygiedig yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi erbyn 31 Mawrth 2023 a fyddai'n cynnwys canllawiau a 
datblygiadau diweddar sy'n ymwneud â Charbon Sero Net, ynghyd â'r Argyfwng 
Natur a gafodd ei ddatgan gan y Cyngor Sir ar 9 Chwefror 2022 (gweler cofnod 
10.2). 
Nodwyd bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd wedi 
cymeradwyo'r adroddiad yn ei gyfarfod ar 4 Hydref 2022.   
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL 
  
6.1 cymeradwyo Adroddiad Cynnydd y Cynllun Carbon Sero Net;  
  
6.2 bod awdurdod yn cael ei roi i Swyddogion wneud addasiadau teipio neu 

ffeithiol yn ôl yr angen, i wella eglurder a chywirdeb Adroddiad 
Cynnydd y Cynllun Carbon Sero Net.   

 
7. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYFARWYDDWR STATUDOL Y 

GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL 2021/22 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried Adroddiad Blynyddol Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol ynghylch perfformiad y gwasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol yn y sir 
yn 2021/22. Roedd yr adroddiad yn rhoi trosolwg o'r perfformiad yn ystod 
2021/22, ynghyd ag asesiad ynghylch darpariaeth yn y dyfodol a'r blaenoriaethau 
strategol ar gyfer 2022/23. Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn amlinellu heriau 
blwyddyn na welwyd ei thebyg o'r blaen oherwydd COVID-19 ac yn tynnu sylw at 
y meysydd hynny oedd i gael eu datblygu yn y flwyddyn gyfredol.  
  
Roedd gofyniad statudol i Gyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol adrodd 
yn flynyddol wrth y Cyngor ar ddarparu gwasanaethau a pherfformiad yn ogystal 
â chynlluniau ar gyfer gwella'r ystod gyfan o wasanaethau cymdeithasol. Nodwyd 
bod y Pwyllgor Craffu - Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol wedi 
cymeradwyo'r adroddiad yn ei gyfarfod ar 5 Hydref 2022.  
  
Talwyd teyrnged unwaith eto i staff sy'n gweithio ar draws y gwasanaethau 
cymdeithasol ac iechyd yn ystod cyfnod a fu'n heriol.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR fod Adroddiad 
Blynyddol Cyfarwyddwr Statudol y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ynghylch 
Perfformiad y Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 
2021/22 yn cael ei gymeradwyo. 
  
 

Tudalen 6



 

8. CYMERADWYO STRATEGAETH DEMENTIA PARTNERIAETH GOFAL 
GORLLEWIN CYMRU 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried Strategaeth Dementia Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin 
Cymru a luniwyd mewn partneriaeth â Chyngor Sir Caerfyrddin, Cyngor 
Ceredigion a Chyngor Sir Penfro, y Bwrdd Iechyd a phartneriaid yn y trydydd 
sector yn ogystal â phobl â dementia, eu gofalwyr, ac aelodau o'r teulu ledled 
Cymru.  
  
Roedd y strategaeth yn cefnogi sawl amcan allweddol yn y Cynllun Corfforaethol, 
ac Amcan Llesiant y Cyngor i gefnogi pobl hŷn er mwyn iddynt heneiddio'n dda a 
chadw'u hurddas a'u hannibyniaeth wrth wneud hynny. Byddai cymeradwyo'r 
Strategaeth, a oedd hefyd wedi'i hystyried a'i chymeradwyo gan y Pwyllgor Craffu 
- Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol yn ei gyfarfod ar 5 Hydref 2022, yn 
galluogi gwasanaethau i gael eu darparu yn unol ag anghenion y gymuned.  
  
Gofynnwyd am gymeradwyaeth Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin o'r strategaeth a oedd yn 
mynd drwy'r broses ddemocrataidd yng Ngheredigion a Sir Benfro ar yr un pryd. 
Roedd eisoes wedi cael ei gymeradwyo gan y Bwrdd Iechyd. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR fod Strategaeth 
Dementia Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru yn cael ei chymeradwyo.  
 

9. ASESIAD POBLOGAETH AC ADRODDIAD YNGHYLCH SEFYDLOGRWYDD 
Y FARCHNAD PARTNERIAETH GOFAL GORLLEWIN CYMRU 
Bu'r Cabinet yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn crynhoi'r dull a ddefnyddiwyd i lunio 
Asesiad Poblogaeth Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru a'r Adroddiad ynghylch 
Sefydlogrwydd y Farchnad Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru ac yn manylu ar y 
canfyddiadau allweddol a'r broses gyhoeddi er mwyn cydymffurfio â chanllawiau 
Llywodraeth Cymru.  
  
Bu'n rhaid cyhoeddi Asesiadau Poblogaeth unwaith ym mhob cylch etholiadol 
llywodraeth leol. Cafodd yr Asesiad Poblogaeth cyntaf ei lunio ym mis Mawrth 
2017, ac roedd y manylion yn cael eu hadnewyddu yn ystod 2022. Roedd 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cyhoeddi cyngor atodol i Fyrddau Partneriaeth 
Rhanbarthol ynghylch llunio Asesiadau Poblogaeth 2022 a oedd yn cynnwys yr 
angen i hefyd lunio Adroddiad ar wahân ynghylch Sefydlogrwydd y Farchnad.  
  
Byddai'r ddwy ddogfen (a fyddai'n llywio Cynllun Ardal Gorllewin Cymru ac yn 
llywio amcanion comisiynu rhanbarthol a lleol) yn cael eu cyhoeddi gan 
Bartneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru ar y porth data ar-lein ar gyfer y rhanbarth. 
Cartref - Partneriaeth Gofal Gorllewin Cymru (wwcpdata.org.uk).  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR fod 
canfyddiadau'r adroddiadau llawn yn cael eu cefnogi ynghyd â'r dull a 
ddefnyddiwyd wrth eu cyhoeddi ar wefan y Cyngor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 7



 

10. NODI BOD Y GRWP LLAFUR WEDI ENWEBU'R CYNGHORWYR MICHAEL 
THOMAS A DOT JONES YN LLE'R CYNGHORWYR SHELLY GODFREY-
COLES AC ANTHONY LEYSHON AR Y PANEL RHIANTA 
CORFFORAETHOL. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi bod y Grŵp Llafur wedi enwebu'r 
Cynghorydd Michael Thomas a'r Cynghorydd Dot Jones yn lle'r 
Cynghorydd Shelly Godfrey-Coles a'r Cynghorydd Anthony Leyshon ar y 
Panel Rhianta Corfforaethol.   
 

11. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972. 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fater brys. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 8



 

 
 

GOBLYGIADAU DEDDF RHENTU CARTREFI (CYMRU) 2016 

Y PWRPAS:  
 
Codi ymwybyddiaeth a rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Cabinet am oblygiadau Deddf Rhentu 
Cartrefi (Cymru) a gofyn nad yw tenantiaethau rhagarweiniol a'r hyn sydd wedi'u holynu o dan 
y Ddeddf yn cael eu defnyddio mwyach.  
 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN: 
 
Argymhelliad Un: O 1 Rhagfyr 2022 ni fydd y cyngor yn rhoi contractau meddiannaeth 
safonol rhagarweiniol o dan Ddeddf Rhentu Cartrefi (Cymru) 2016. 

Argymhelliad Dau: Diddymu penderfyniad blaenorol y Cyngor i weithredu trefn tenantiaeth 
ragarweiniol, a hynny ar unwaith. 

Y RHESYMAU:   
 
O 1 Rhagfyr 2022, mae pob tenantiaeth a roddir gan landlordiaid yng Nghymru yn newid o 
dan drefn gyfreithiol newydd y Ddeddf Rhentu Cartrefi yn ddeiliaid contract. Mae'r Ddeddf yn 
disodli deddfwriaeth dai flaenorol ynghylch tenantiaethau a basiwyd gan Senedd y DU. Ni 
fydd tenantiaethau rhagarweiniol yn bodoli mwyach yng Nghymru ond gallant newid yn 
Gontractau Safonol Rhagarweiniol. Ni fyddai fawr o fudd parhau i roi'r math hwn o gontract i 
denantiaid newydd (Deiliaid Contract) gan fod y Ddeddf wedi gwneud sawl newid i wella 
hawliau tenantiaid. Mae rhwymedïau cyfreithiol eraill i fynd i'r afael ag ymddygiad 
gwrthgymdeithasol yn parhau ar waith.  
 
Angen i'r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                         OES -  31 Hydref 2022 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                          NAC OES  
 
YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans - Cartrefi a Dirprwy Arweinydd. 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jonathan Morgan 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Les James 

Swydd: 

Y Pennaeth Tai 

Rheolwr Contractau a 
Datblygu Gwasanaeth 

Rhifau ffôn/Cyfeiriadau 
e-bost: 
(01267) 228960 
JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
01267 228930 
lesjames@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
  

Y CABINET 

31 HYDREF 2022

Tudalen 9

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:lesjames@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

CABINET 
31ST OCTOBER, 2022 

 
IMPLICATIONS OF THE RENTING HOMES (WALES) ACT  

1. Executive summary 
 
1.1. The Renting Homes (Wales) Act has been developed to simplify legislation associated 

with renting a property from Social Housing and Private Rented Sector landlords in 
Wales by creating a single main piece of legislation. The Act will replace the different 
tenancy and licence that currently exist with just two types of ‘occupation contract’ - one 
for the private rented sector and one for the social rented sector.  
 

1.2. The Act fundamentally changes all aspects in the way we issue and administrate 
occupational contracts (tenancies, licences, management agreements) that are issued 
to tenants in Wales. The main elements of the Act come into force on 1 December 
2022. 
  

1.3. The emphasis of the Act is to place the person at the centre so that they have secure 
occupation. The Act brings together new and additional rights for the contract holder 
placing requirements on the landlord to act within a reasonable timescale to requests 
and ensuring properties are fit for habitation. 
 

1.4.  It is recommended that we issue Occupational Secure Contracts (formerly known as 
secure tenancies) to all of our Council tenants, and we do not use Introductory Standard 
Contracts, (commonly known as introductory or probationary tenancies) as these are 
seen as “watered-down” versions of the original introductory tenancies, it should be 
noted that all tools to tackle ASB are unchanged.  

 
1.5. Under the Act we will have to give tenants 2 months’ notice of any rent increase instead 

of the current one-month notice. This may pose some difficulty in terms of when we are 
notified of what the rent increase is to be (currently due to the high inflation rate it is a 
Ministerial decision). Rent increases require full council approval and therefore any 
increase would need to be approved before the end of January.  

 
1.6.  The main implications of the Act are summarised in the attached report.  

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES – Implications of the Renting Homes (Wales) 

Act 

 
 

Tudalen 10



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
2. Legal   
Under the 2016 Act it is up to the Council whether to issue introductory standard contracts 
to new contract-holders after 1st December 2022.  
 
If the Council does not revoke its previous decision to operate an introductory tenancy 
regime under the Housing Act 1996, on 1st December 2022 introductory tenancies will 
become introductory standard contracts. 
 
If we use introductory contracts and do not revoke our previous decision to operate an 
introductory tenancy, it is likely that we will need to have at least 5 different Written 
Statements of Contract to deal with our new and converted introductory and secure 
contract-holders. This will make the management of our occupation contracts more 
complex than at present. Moving away from introductory tenancies and contracts will 
simplify our implementation of the new legislation.  
Alan Evans (2.9.22) 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:   Jonathan Morgan                                                      Head of Housing                       

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE YES  NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

Tudalen 11



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed: Jonathan Morgan                                                        Head of Housing                                                 

 
 

1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  NO 
 
Scrutiny Committee  N/A 
Date the report was considered:- N/A 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- N/A 
 
 

 
2.Local Member(s)   
Not applicable 
3.Community / Town Council  
Not Applicable  
4.Relevant Partners   
Not Applicable 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Service Managers have been consulted on the proposals. The proposals were also 
approved by Renting Homes Steering Group.  

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER AWARE/CONSULTED? 

 

YES 
Cllr Evans has been briefed on the 
implications of the Act and endorses the 
proposal to issue Occupational Secure 
Contracts to new and existing tenants.  
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THERE ARE NONE  
 

 

Tudalen 12



 

  

Housing Services 
Implications of Renting 

Homes (Wales) Act 2016
 

     

Tudalen 13



1 
 

1. Purpose 

To raise awareness and provide an update to Cabinet on the implications of the 

Renting Homes (Wales) Act and to request that introductory tenancies and its 

successor under the Act are no longer used.  

2. Context 

The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 simplifies how we will rent properties in 

Wales whether it be social landlord or the private rented sector. The Act gives us 

two types of landlords, namely:   

• community landlords (primarily local authorities and registered social 

landlords); and 

• private landlords (all other landlords). 

Under the Act tenants and licensees are called ‘contract-holders’ who will have 

an ‘occupation contract’ (which replaces tenancy and licence arrangements). 

There are two types of occupation contracts: 

• Secure contract: For use by community landlords; and 

• Standard contract: This is the default contract for the private rented sector 

(PRS) but can be used by local authorities and RSLs in certain 

circumstances (e.g. a ‘Supported standard contract’ within supported 

accommodation). 

The Act has major implications for us in terms of our landlord functions in relation 

to our Council house stock and homelessness temporary accommodation 

responsibilities.  

 

2. General information about the Act 

This is a new piece of legislation introduced by Welsh Government with the main 

components coming into effect on 1 December 2022 (originally it was 15 July). 

The legislation will affect every tenant and landlord in public and private rented 

sector in Wales. The Act gives additional rights to tenants, supporting the Welsh 

Government view that tenants should be given a secure occupation contract. The 

Council is still the landlord and will continue to provide the same housing service. 

 

Tudalen 14



2 
 

In summary from the 1 December: 

• The Council is now called a community landlord 

• A tenant under the Act is called a contract-holder 

• Our secure tenancies convert to secure occupation contracts on 1 December 

2022. 

• Any existing introductory tenancies convert to introductory standard 

occupation contracts on 1 December 2022. 

• Tenancy start date is now called occupation date. 

• Tenancy agreement is now called a written statement of terms and sets out 

the contract’s rights and responsibilities. 

• Notices cannot be served unless there is an up to date electrical and energy 

performance certificate. 

• The Court must consider the contract-holder’s circumstances and that it is 

reasonable to make a possession order. 

• Landlords will have to give a written statement within 14 days of a contract 

starting or face financial penalties.  

The main implications of the Act are summarised and highlighted below. 

3. Council Housing Stock 

Introductory tenancies under the Act are replaced with Introductory Standard 

Contracts which do not have the same legal power. However, existing legislation 

tackling ASB has not been changed. 

The Act brings in two grounds for possessions – breach of contract (includes, rent 

arrears, ASB, excessive noise, verbal abuse, and physical assault. It also includes 

domestic abuse) and Estate Management grounds.   

The Act introduces 29 considerations on Fitness for Human Habitation and has an 

impact on our repairing and maintenance obligations. If we do not respond in a 

timely manner, the contract holder can ask the court to award compensation 

equivalent to a day’s rent for every day they have been inconvenienced. This is in 

addition to any disrepair claims. 

The Fitness for Human Habitation obligations require landlords to ensure that a valid 

Gas Safety Certificate, Electrical Inspection condition report, and Energy 

Performance Certificate are provided to the contract-holder. Under the new law, a 

Tudalen 15



3 
 

contract-holder is entitled to withhold rent for any period when the property is unfit, 

which includes failing to meet these requirements. A landlord will not be able to 

serve a Notice until such time as they follow these requirements. 

There are improved succession rights for contract holders to pass on their home. 

Such as, in the event a contract-holder dies, they now have the reassurance of 

added security that the contract may pass on to family members residing at the 

home. Both ‘priority’ and ‘reserve’ successors are now able to take over the 

‘Occupation Contract’, subject to meeting the requirements of the Act. A Priority 

successor is a spouse/civil partner (or living as either). Reserve Successors can be a 

family member/carer (living at the property for 12 months prior to the contract-

holder’s death).  

Both Priority and Reserve successors must have no other home to occupy at the 

time of death and must be 18+ years old to hold the contract when they succeed. If 

there is more than one person eligible to succeed, a Priority successor will have 

priority over a Reserve. 

Legal note on carer’s 
During the 12 months before the contract-holder’s death, the carer must have 

provided substantial care regularly for the contract-holder or a member of the 

contract-holder’s family who lived at the property. The carer must not have 

provided the care because of a contract of employment or other contract with 

anyone. Being given board and lodging does not count as a contract. The carer 

must have lived at the property as their only and main home or lived with the 

contract-holder throughout the 12 months before their death. The carer must have 

no other property which they are entitled to occupy as a home. 

 

We must give two months’ notice of any increase in rent and only one increase is 

permitted within 365 days. For us this means we can only increase our rents once 

each year on 4 April. The implication is that we would need full Council approval for 

the annual rent increase to be made before February. Any delay in the legal 

notification would push back the date we can increase the rent for Council contract 

holders (tenants).   

Tudalen 16



4 
 

The Act also brings in changes to smoke alarms and carbon monoxide detectors. 

The landlord must ensure that, during each period of occupation, on each storey of 

the property there is a smoke alarm which is: 

a) In repair and proper working order. 

b) Connected to the property’s electrical supply. 

c) Linked to every other smoke alarm in the property which is 

connected to the electrical supply. 

Similarly, that landlord must ensure that, during each period of occupation, a carbon 

monoxide alarm which is in repair and proper working order is in each room of the 

property which contains a gas appliance, an oil-fired combustion appliance or a solid 

fuel burning combustion appliance. 

 

4. Homelessness, Temporary Accommodation, Simple Lets and Supported 
housing. 

For this part, the Act does differ slightly in terms of different contracts, and conditions 

used. When it comes to homelessness the WG would like to ensure those 

applicants, where we owe them a duty to rehouse, are progressed in a timely 

manner onto a secure contract. Fitness For Human Habitation, repairing obligations 

and safety requirements all apply except that the contracts used here do not have 

any succession rights. The main points here are that: 

• Notices must be brought to Court within 6 months of notice date. This used to 

be 12 months. 

• On 1 December, all existing Assured and Assured Shorthold Tenancies will 

convert to standard periodic occupation contracts.  

• Standard periodic occupation contract will require a 6 months’ notice to end 

the contract, effectively making it a 12-month contract. A two-month notice is 

allowed where there is a breach of contract.  

• As stated above, a Notice can only be served by the landlord on a contract 

holder if there is a Gas Safety Certificate, an EPC (rating A to E), a 5 year 

electrical certificate in place, in addition to two hard wired smoke alarms and a 

working CO detector at the property on sign up. There can be no serious 

Tudalen 17



5 
 

condition issues that fall short of the Fitness For Human Habitation 

obligations.  

• An increase in the ‘no fault’ notice period from two to six months. The Act 

seeks to protect contract-holders from ‘retaliatory evictions’ where occupiers 

are at risk of eviction for complaining about the condition of a property. It 

therefore allows the court to refuse to make an order for possession, where it 

is satisfied that the landlord is seeking to avoid complying with its Fitness For 

Human Habitation obligations. In addition, where the court refuses possession 

on this basis, the landlord will be unable to give a further ‘no grounds’ notice 

to terminate, for at least a further six months after the date of the court’s 

refusal. 

• If a homeless client is in B&B accommodation for more than 12 months then 

they will be need to be issued with Standard contract; and 

• The Act changes the way we deal with temporary, supported, and shared 

accommodation and it strengthens the contract-holder’s rights towards secure 

occupation. 

 

5. Changes we have been making 
• Updated all our legal agreements and contracts so that they are compliant 

with the Act. 

• New procedures written to reflect the requirements of the Act. 

• Policies reworded to comply with the Act. 

• Amended letters, forms, notices and documents to ensure they contain the 

correct terms under the Act 

• IT systems updated with new format for system generated 

letters/notices/forms. 

• Web pages updated to ensure correct terms are used. 

• Converted our existing tenancies to Secure Occupational Contracts in line 

with the Act requirements.   

• All new “tenancies” from 1st December will be issued with a secure contract. 

• All existing tenancies will convert to the new contracts on 1st December 2022. 

We then have 6 months to give “written statements” to all of our existing 

“tenants”; and 

Tudalen 18



6 
 

• Only one rent increase permitted per year and two months’ notice now 

required. We are looking at rent increase letters going out before February to 

take effect on 4 April.  

 

6. Decision required on Introductory Tenancies  

The Renting Homes Project Group has been established to oversee the 

implementation and introduction of the Act. This work has included consideration of 

the use and effectiveness of Introductory Tenancies, which under the provisions of 

the Act will be replaced by Introductory Standard Contract on the 1st of December.  

A review by the Group regarding the use and effectiveness of Introductory Tenancies 

shows that there is no practical or operational reason to continue with the use of 

these or adoption of the Introductory Standard Contracts after the implementation of 

the Act in December. If approved, the use of Introductory Tenancies should not be 

issued beyond the date of this report, and we will not adopt the use of Introductory 

Standard Contracts on 1 December.  

Under the current legislation, when the introductory period of an introductory tenancy 

ends, the tenancy itself does not come to an end. However, the legal status of the 

tenancy changes, to a secure tenancy. 

Under the Renting Homes Act, the position with introductory contracts is different. 

Under the new Act, at the end of the probationary period the introductory contract 

comes to an end, and a new secure occupation contract is automatically created on 

the relevant date.  

Whilst this may seem like a minor change, this has a bearing on the administration of 

these contracts and the collection of rents, making it more onerous to use 

introductory contracts. For example, all of our current tenancies start on a Monday, 

and operate on the basis of a rent week which commences on a Monday and ends 

on a Sunday. Under the new Act, this will no longer be possible, as these new 

secure contracts will automatically be created on other days of the week. 

The Authority currently has a single standard tenancy agreement, which applies to 

all our introductory and secure tenants. Under the new Act, this will no longer be 

possible. Should we continue with the use of introductory contracts, we will need to 

have different Written Statements of Contract for our introductory and secure 

contracts, to reflect the differences between them. We will also need to have 

Tudalen 19



7 
 

different Written Statements of contract for our new and existing tenants, to reflect 

the different terms which apply to them 

Due to the requirement of the legislation, if we continue to use introductory contracts 

it is likely that we will need to have at least 5 different Written Statements of Contract 

to deal with out new and existing introductory and secure contract-holders. This will 

make the use and administration of these agreements significantly more complex 

than at present. 

Breach of contract (Prohibited Conduct/Anti-social behaviour) 

The way we deal with Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) will also change under the Act. 

Whilst many of the ASB remedies are completely unaffected, a new process is 

added to the two traditional “eviction” options (possession and demotion). The 

landlord may now apply for one joint contract-holder to be removed from the contract 

based on their prohibited conduct. 

Where the landlord is satisfied that there is behaviour falling within the Prohibited 

Conduct clause, the options which are created by the Renting Homes (Wales) Act 

2016 are: 

• Seek possession against the contract holder or holders based on Breach of 

Contract. 

• Seek a court order demoting the secure contract by imposing a Standard 

Periodic Contract. 

• Where the conduct is on the part of one joint contract-holder only, the landlord 

can seek to end the contract for that one contract-holder. 

Judges will need to consider when contemplating reasonableness whether a lesser 

remedy is available. The Act introduces a new appeals system in which the contract 

holder can ask the Courts to review a decision to serve the notice in the first place. 

When it comes to ASB we can still use these legal remedies, such as:  

• Injunctions 

• Acceptable Behaviour Contract  

• Mediation 

• Community Trigger 

• Community Remedy 

• Warning letters 

Tudalen 20



8 
 

• Community Protection Notice  

• Criminally related Antisocial Behaviour Orders 

• Closure orders 

• Criminal Behaviour Order 

• Public Spaces Protection Order; and  

• Dispersal orders. 

 

While that Act is enshrined in law and as such, we must follow the requirements, we 

do have discretion as to whether to continue to use the replacement of Introductory 

tenancies now called Introductory Standard Contracts. Over the years, Introductory 

tenancies have been a useful tool in combatting anti-social behaviour and other 

breaches early in the tenancy and before it became a full secure tenancy. However, 

their effectiveness has been watered down in recent times due to extended notice 

periods during Covid. Renting Homes will re-introduce those lengthy periods.  

Legal Note 
One of the circumstances where we as a community landlord may use a standard 

contract is where it is an introductory contract. A section 13 notice is required, and 

the notice must set out the reason the contract is a standard one and explain that 

the contract holder can apply to the court for a review of the decision to serve it. If 

a S13 notice is not served on time for any reason, their contract will be a secure 

contract by default.  

 

The Introductory contract operates as a periodic standard contract for the 

“introductory period”. When it ends a new secure contract arises. It is no longer an 

Introductory Contract at that point. The introductory period can be extended to up 

to 18 months by serving a prescribed notice not less than 8 weeks before it is due 

to expire, although the decision to do that is subject to a review and challenge to 

the court. 

 

The same rules on S13 notices apply to temporary accommodation. 

 

What will remain under Renting Homes is the fact that a landlord has a mandatory 

ground for possession by service notice. So, provided the correct notice has been 

validly served (and all of the conditions for service are met) then subject to any 

Tudalen 21



9 
 

review, the court must grant a possession order. However, as a result of the notice 

period combined with the lengthy period before which notice can be served, court 

possession proceedings cannot commence during the first year of the occupancy.  

7. Recommendations 

Recommendation One: From 1 December 2022 the council will not issue 
introductory standard occupation contracts under the Renting Homes (Wales) Act 
2016. 

Recommendation Two: That the Council’s previous decision electing to operate an 
introductory tenancy regime shall be revoked with immediate effect. 

Tudalen 22



 

CYFARFOD Y CABINET  
 

31 HYDREF 2022 
 

DIWEDDARIAD AR GRONFA FFYNIANT GYFFREDIN Y DU 
Y Pwrpas:  
Darparu diweddariad ar y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin a chadarnhau'r camau a gymerwyd hyd 
yma i sicrhau bod y Sir yn elwa o'r Rhaglen fuddsoddi newydd hon. 
 
Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen: 
 

1) Cefnogi’r camau a gymerwyd hyd yma a fydd yn galluogi’r Sir i elwa o’r Gronfa Ffyniant 
Gyffredin  
2) Cymeradwyo'r prosiectau Angori arfaethedig 
3) Awdurdodi sefydlu'r Tîm Rheoli Rhaglen a fydd yn gyfrifol am gyflwyno'r Rhaglen ar lefel 
leol. 

 
Y Rhesymau:  
Mae Cronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin y DU yn elfen ganolog o agenda Lefelu i Fyny Llywodraeth y 
DU. Mae dyraniad cyllid o £38.6m wedi’i gadarnhau ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin a fydd yn ein 
galluogi i gyflawni yn erbyn rhai o amcanion strategol y Sir. I ddatgloi’r cyllid hwn, mae’n rhaid 
i Lywodraeth y DU gymeradwyo Cynllun Buddsoddi Rhanbarthol y De-orllewin a gyflwynwyd 
erbyn y dyddiad cau, sef 1 Awst 2022. 
 
Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad   OES  
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad   NAC OES  
 
YR AELOD O'R CABINET  SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-   
Cydd Gareth John, Aelod  Cabinet ar gyfer Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Twristiaeth 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
 
Jason Jones 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
 
Rhian Phillips 
 

 
Swyddi: 
 
Pennaeth Adfywio 
 
 
 
Rheolwr Lle, Datblygu 
Economaidd 

 
Rhifau ffôn: 
 
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
jajones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
mrphillps@sirgar.gov.uk  

 
 
  

Tudalen 23

Eitem Rhif  7

mailto:jajones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:mrphillps@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

CABINET MEETING  
31ST OCTOBER 2022 

 

UPDATE ON THE UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND (UKSPF) 

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
Progress to date  
Since the report to Cabinet in July this year, which set out the general principles of the UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund, a great deal of progress has been made in preparing for this new 
investment programme.   
 
The Regional Investment Plan, which was prepared by the four local authorities in South West 
Wales, was submitted to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 
by Swansea Council, on behalf of the region by the deadline of 1st August 2022. Positive 
feedback was received from civil servants prior to submission. UK Government approval is 
awaited, with anticipated approval by the end of November 2022. We cannot, however, rule out 
the possibility of policy changes introduced by UK Government at this moment in time. 
 
Implementation 
Since the submission of the Regional Investment Plan, work has been progressing on the 
implementation of the plan on a regional basis to provide commonality, as far as possible, and 
to ensure that we achieve a rapid start so that allocations are fully taken up each year. 
 
Despite the programme being structured around a regional plan, with a Regional Lead 
(Swansea CC), implementation will be devolved to the local level.  

The following modes of delivery are proposed: 
 

• Anchor projects 
• Standalone projects 
• Commissioned projects 

 
These are explained in more detail in the main report. 
 
Project Development 
 
Since the Regional Investment Plan was submitted at the end of July 2022, officers from the 
four Local Authorities have been meeting on a weekly basis to work up the detail in relation to 
the proposed modes of delivery.  
 
 
 

Tudalen 24



 

To ensure that wider stakeholders are involved in the development of the Anchor projects as 
well as the standalone projects, thematic sub-groups of the Carmarthenshire Regeneration 
Partnership have been established. The Carmarthenshire Regeneration Partnership’s role is to 
oversee the delivery of the programme and to provide expert input. 
Management of the UKSPF in Carmarthenshire 
UK SPF provides for circa 4% of resources to be used to fund administrative support for the 
programme. The Lead Local Authority (Swansea CC) will need additional capacity to resource 
its regional management function. 
 
In addition to the regional management function, a dedicated local team will need to be 
established for the County which will be fully funded via the UKSPF.  
 
Work is currently underway to identify the resource required to deliver the Programme 
management function in Carmarthenshire. To ensure a timely start to the programme, we 
anticipate that the recruitment of these roles will commence as soon as approval is granted by 
UK Government. 
 
Conclusion 
 
A great deal of progress has been made since the Regional Investment Plan was submitted to 
UK Government earlier this year. Whilst we are still awaiting formal approval from UK 
Government, work is on-going to ensure that the necessary arrangements are in place and that 
delivery can start once UK Government approval is granted. 
 
OTHER OPTIONS AVAILABLE AND THEIR PROS AND CONS 
 
 
The UK Government has allocated funding over the next 3 years which will help address some 
of the challenges facing the County. With funding from EU programmes ending, the UKSPF 
presents an opportunity to draw down further investment into the County. 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

  

Tudalen 25



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
 

  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other 
implications associated with this report: 
 
Signed:           Jason Jones                                                        Head of Regeneration                        

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

YES  YES YES  NONE 
 

YES  YES  NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
 
The Shared Prosperity Fund provides an opportunity to draw down additional investment 
which will help deliver against some of the County’s key strategic objectives. 
 
In order to draw down the funding, a Regional Investment Plan was submitted to UK 
Government setting out how the Region intends to utilise the funding based on local needs 
and opportunities. A Carmarthenshire Investment Plan was developed which fed into the 
Regional Plan.  
 
The Investment Plan for Carmarthenshire is based on our existing strategies and plans 
including the Economic Recovery Plan, Local Innovation Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment, 
and the South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan. The Carmarthenshire Plan is 
aligned to the 7 Well-being goals of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. 

Tudalen 26



 

2. Legal   
Local government is being given responsibility for delivery of the UKSPF.  Swansea Council 
will act as the ‘lead local authority’ for the South West region and will have overall 
accountability for the funding and how the Fund operates.  
 
Delivery and management of the programme in Carmarthenshire will be the responsibility of 
the Authority. This will include assessing and approving local project applications, entering 
into funding agreements with third parties as well as processing payments and day-to-day 
monitoring.  
 
Appropriate agreements will be put in place between the Regional lead and the Authority 
which will set out agreed roles and responsibilities. 
 
At a project delivery level, the Authority will enter into a funding agreement with all delivery 
partners. These will be developed in conjunction with the Authority’s legal team at the 
appropriate time. 
 
2. Finance   
Whilst Swansea Council will act as the accountable body for the region and receive 
the Region’s allocation via UK Government, delivery and management of 
Carmarthenshire’s allocation will remain the responsibility of the Authority. 
 
A dedicated Programme Management Team will be established at a County level to 
undertake the necessary fund administration. Grant management processes and procedures 
will be established to ensure that the funding is managed in accordance with the fund 
requirements. This will involve the establishment of funding agreements with third parties as 
well as the establishment of procedures for processing payments, monitoring of financial 
spend, audit requirements etc. These will be developed in conjunction with Corporate 
services. 
5. Risk Management Issues 
A programme level risk management process will be developed to ensure that risk is 
assessed and managed at all levels. 
 
Individual risk registers will be maintained at project level together with appropriate mitigation 
measures.  

 
7. Staffing Implications 
To manage the UKSPF at a local level, a dedicated Programme Management team will 
need to be established to ensure that the necessary processes and procedures are put in 
place to administer the UKSPF. This team will sit within Economic Development.   
 
The UKSPF provides for circa 4% of resources to be used to fund administrative support 
for the programme.  
 
To ensure that the UKSPF can commence as soon as UK Government approval is granted, 
work has been progressing in drafting the staffing structure. 

 

Tudalen 27



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:          Jason Jones                                                        Head of Regeneration                                         

 
1. Scrutiny Committee request for pre-determination  N/A 
Scrutiny Committee  N/A 
Date the report was considered:- N/A 
Scrutiny Committee Outcome/Recommendations:- N/A 

2.Local Member(s)   
Local Members were given an opportunity to feed into the original consultation on the 
development of the Local Investment Plan which provides the steer for the delivery of the 
UKSPF at a local level. The proposed modes of delivery identified take into account the 
priorities as outlines within the Investment Plan.  
 
3.Community / Town Council  
Town and community councils have also been given an opportunity to input the Local 
Investment Plan process.  
 
4.Relevant Partners   
Various stakeholders were given an opportunity to input into the development of the Local 
Investment Plan and to identify priorities for funding. In addition, the Carmarthenshire 
Regeneration Partnership has been established which includes representation from 
business, public and third sector to provide expertise and oversight into the UKSPF 
process at a local level. 
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - N/A 

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW    
 
Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  
South West Wales 
Regional Investment Plan 

  

UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund Prospectus 

 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-
prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-
prospectus 

 

Tudalen 28



 

CABINET MEETING  
31ST OCTOBER 2022 
 
Update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
 
Purpose 
 
To provide an update on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and to endorse 
steps taken to date, and proposed, to ensure that the County benefits from this new 
investment programme. 
 
Progress to date  
 
Since the report to Cabinet in July this year, which set out the general principles of 
the UKSPF, a great deal of progress has been made in preparing for this new 
investment programme. 
 
The Regional Investment Plan which was prepared by the four local authorities in 
South West Wales was submitted to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) by Swansea Council on behalf of the region by the deadline 
of 1st August 2022. Positive feedback was received from civil servants prior to 
submission. UK Government approval is awaited, with anticipated approval by the 
end of November 2022. We cannot, however, rule out the possibility of policy 
changes introduced by UK Government at this moment in time. 
 
Once approval of the Regional Investment Plan is granted, we anticipate that 
Swansea Council, as the lead authority, will enter into a funding agreement with UK 
Government which will enable the region to unlock the funding. Subsequently an 
agreement will be put in place between Swansea Council and this Authority.   
 
Implementation 
 
Since the submission of the Regional Investment Plan, work has been progressing 
on the implementation of the plan on a regional basis to provide commonality, as far 
as possible, and to ensure that we achieve a rapid start so that allocations are fully 
taken up each year. 
 
Despite the programme being structured around a regional plan, with a Regional 
Lead, implementation will be devolved to the local level.  

The following modes of delivery are proposed: 
 

• Anchor projects 
• Standalone projects 
• Commissioned projects 

 
These are explained in more detail below. 
  

Tudalen 29



 

 
Anchor Projects.  These will be thematic projects that will manage major parts of 
the investment strategy primarily by offering third-party grants to organisations.  
Third party grants will provide organisations the opportunity to deliver projects that 
address challenges for Carmarthenshire as identified within the Investment Plan.  
The following grant schemes are expected to be delivered:  

 
• Grants to public sector, voluntary and community groups including town and 

community councils 
• Grants to businesses to improve productivity and growth  

Anchor projects will be managed by the Local Authority but co-ordinated through 
local partnership structures. Anchor projects will be required to report to local 
Partnerships within each Local Authority as appropriate. In Carmarthenshire, the 
Regeneration Partnership , which includes representation from Public Service Board, 
University of Wales Trinity Saint David, Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary 
Services, Antur Cymru, Grwp Cefn Gwlad amongst others, has been established to 
provide that input and oversight. 

Anchor projects will not necessarily be the same across the whole region and it will 
be for each local area to determine which anchor projects are most appropriate for 
them.  
 
Within Carmarthenshire, the following Anchor projects have been identified which 
are similar to those identified in other parts of the South West Wales region: 
 

- Communities  
- Rural  
- Supporting Business 
- Place 
- People and Skills 

Annex 1 sets out the scope of delivery for each of the proposed Anchor projects. 
 
Anchor projects will need to demonstrate how they add value to other funding 
programmes and investments in the area including National Employment support 
programmes, existing adult skills provision, Welsh Government business support 
programmes etc 
 
It is envisaged that the Anchor projects will be sufficiently staffed to project manage 
grant scheme delivery. A further report will be presented to Cabinet by the end of the 
year with further detail in relation to the Anchor projects. 
 
Standalone projects.   
There will be challenges identified in the Investment Plan that are not covered by the 
anchor teams. It is anticipated that these will be addressed by opening calls for 
standalone projects. These will be invited by competitive bidding rounds to fill clear 
gaps in strategy delivery that are not being met by the anchor projects. This is to 
ensure that we are fulfilling the needs of our Local Investment Plan.  

Tudalen 30



 

  

Tudalen 31



 

For example, within the Communities and Place theme it is likely that there will be a 
need for large standalone projects looking at volunteering and social enterprise 
support. 

 
Commissioned projects.  These will be specified and procured to deliver precisely 
defined activity that is not being fulfilled by the delivery modes detailed above. This is 
to ensure that we are fulfilling the needs of our Local Investment Plan. 
 
Governance and local decision making 
 
As reported to Cabinet on the 25th July 2022, it has been agreed that Swansea Council 
will act as the lead Authority on behalf of the South West region. This was formally 
adopted by Swansea Council in September 2022. 
 
Whilst Swansea Council will serve as the Lead Local Authority for the administration 
of UKSPF, decision making will predominantly sit at a local level, with each Local 
Authority adhering to their own constitutional arrangements and protocols.  
 
In line with the modes of delivery, we are currently working up assessment criteria, 
application forms and decision making processes. These will be subject of a further 
Cabinet report before the end of the year. 
 
As previously reported, UK government is keen to involve local partners including 
local businesses, public and third sectors in the assessment process. In 
Carmarthenshire, we have established a Regeneration Partnership which has been 
involved in the development of the Local Investment Plan and more recently has 
been consulted on the proposed delivery modes for the UKSPF, which have been 
supported by the Partnership. 
 
Project Development 
Since the Regional Investment Plan was submitted at the end of July 2022, officers 
from the four Local Authorities have been meeting on a weekly basis to work up the 
detail in relation to the proposed modes of delivery.  
 
To ensure that wider stakeholders are involved in the development of the Anchor 
projects, as well as the standalone projects, thematic sub-groups of the 
Carmarthenshire Regeneration Partnership have been established around the three 
strategic areas of the Shared Prosperity Fund, namely: 

- Communities and Place 
- Supporting Business 
- People and Skills 

 
The role of the sub groups is to  

- Provide expert advice and input into the design of the Anchor projects including 
establishment of criteria for grant schemes; timing and frequency of application 
deadlines; consideration of funding to be allocated; programme indicators etc 

- Assist the Anchor teams in ensuring that SPF activity adds value to other 
regional, national initiatives e.g. Welsh Government Business Support 
programmes etc  

Tudalen 32



 

- Input into the type and frequency of strategic calls for applications including 
level of funding to be allocated 

- Form part of the assessment process for standalone projects 
- Monitor progress of all activity within the respective theme and advise on any 

changes required to delivery  
 
Management of the UKSPF in Carmarthenshire 
 
UK SPF provides for circa 4% of resources to be used to fund administrative support 
for the programme. However, it is worth noting that the Lead Local Authority 
(Swansea Council) will need additional capacity to resource its regional management 
function. 
 
The majority of the 4% administrative budget will be used to provide capacity within 
local management teams. These teams will need to: 

• Organise competitive bidding rounds for standalone projects 
• Commission projects as necessary. 
• Carry out programme management functions to include: 

o Collation of financial and non-financial returns to Swansea Council for 
DLUHC. 

o Preparation of progress reports for Swansea Council and DLUHC. 
o Preparation of reports for local partnerships and Regional Directors 
o Performance management and change control. 
o Commissioning of regional and local level evaluations and contract 

management. 
o Management of branding and publicity issues. 
o Subsidy control. 
o Assurance of propriety, regularity, and value for money of expenditure. 
o Liaison with DLUHC regarding possible audit. 

• Prepare Annual Reports on UK SPF to Cabinet within each LA. 

The amount of funding that the Carmarthenshire Programme Management Team will 
receive as part of the administrative budget has yet to be determined. 
 
Work is currently underway to identify the resource required to deliver the Programme 
management function in Carmarthenshire. To ensure a timely start to the programme, 
we anticipate that the recruitment of these roles will commence as soon as approval 
is granted by UK Government. 
 
Conclusion 
 
A great deal of progress has been made since the Regional Investment Plan was 
submitted to UK Government earlier this year. Whilst we are still awaiting formal 
approval from UK Government, work is on-going to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place and that delivery can start once UK Government approval 
is granted. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Cabinet – Shared Prosperity Fund, 31st October 2022 

Annex 1 

SPF Theme Propose 
Anchor 
Projects  

Third Party Grants (to be 
coordinated by Anchor Projects) 

Standalone Projects Commissioned Projects 

Sustainable 
Communities  

Grant scheme to cover the following 
themes: 
 

• Poverty (to include projects that 
will address the cost of living 
crisis) 

• Circular Economy 
• Wellbeing / Leisure 
• Access to Services 
• Environment and Green  
• Culture / Heritage 
• Community Engagement 
• Feasibility Studies 

 

• Volunteering  
• Social enterprise support 
• Active travel and small-

scale green transport 
projects 

• Foundational economy 
 

To be confirmed once gaps 
identified that have not been 
covered by Third Party Grants 
and Standalone Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rural  
 

• Ten Towns initiative 
• Rural Innovation fund 
• Rural access to services- Hwb 

Fach y Wlad 
 

• Projects to support the 
development of a local 
food system. 

As above 

Communities 
& Place 
 
 

 
Place 

 
• Sustaining Town Centres to 

include public realm 
improvements, meanwhile spaces 
etc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
• Meanwhile Space 

Programme  
 

 

T
udalen 35



Cabinet – Shared Prosperity Fund, 31st October 2022 

SPF Theme Propose 
Anchor 
Projects  

Third Party Grants (to be 
coordinated by Anchor Projects) 

Standalone Projects Commissioned Projects 

Supporting 
Local 
Business 

Supporting 
Local Business 

 

• Business Start-Up and Growth 
Fund 

• Town Centre specific support 
package to include shop front 
renewal aiming on bringing 
vacant commercial space back 
into business use 

• Property Development Fund 
• Decarbonisation Business Fund 
• Tourism, Culture and Heritage 

Fund 

• Local Supply Chain 
Development  

• Skills for town Centre 
Retail 

 
As above 

People and 
Skills 

People & Skills • Grants to the third sector and 
private sector to support activity 
previously supported by the 
WCVA Active Inclusion 
programme, or similar 

 
• Third Party Grant for gap filler 

skills projects 
 
  

 
• Youth Engagement 

Provision - Pre & Post 16 
provision to support young 
people to attain positive 
outcomes 
 

• Paid Work Experience 16 - 
24 programme  

 
Aligned to the Regional 
Learning & Skills 3 year 
Employment & Skills Plan 

 

T
udalen 36


	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALWYD AR 17 HYDREF 2022
	6 GOBLYGIADAU DEDDF RHENTU CARTREFI (CYMRU) 2016
	Adroddiad

	7 DIWEDDARIAD AR GRONFA FFYNIANT GYFFREDIN Y DU
	Adroddiad
	Ychwanegiad 1


